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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Good morning. I am

          3  Kathryn Freed, the Chairperson of the Committee on

          4  Contracts. I would like to begin by recognizing my

          5  colleagues who are present here today. To my

          6  immediate left is Council Member Stephen Fiala, who

          7  is the co-sponsor of this bill, and to his immediate

          8  left is Council Member William Perkins from

          9  Manhattan.

         10                 This morning we will be discussing

         11  Intro. 902, a local law to amend the City's

         12  administrative code in relation to requiring

         13  contractors to provide certification that meat

         14  products sold to City agencies are in full

         15  compliance with FDA regulations, prohibiting the use

         16  of certain animal proteins in cattle feed.

         17                 City agencies buy approximately $65

         18  million to $70 million worth of food each year. In

         19  relation to the supply and delivery of food service

         20  contracts, the Department of Citywide Administrative

         21  Services, better known as DCAS, is responsible for

         22  providing support to various municipal entities that

         23  serve the public, including the City's hospitals,

         24  jails, homeless shelters and other facilities.

         25                 The Council of the City of New York
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          2  finds that there are growing nationwide concerns

          3  regarding the spread of Mad Cow Disease. According

          4  to the FDA, it is a fatal disease that causes

          5  progressive neurological degeneration in cattle.

          6  Similar to Mad Cow Disease, Creutzfeldt-Jakob

          7  Disease, better known as CJD, is a rare disease that

          8  occurs in humans. Both diseases are invariably

          9  fatal, and there is no known treatment or cure.

         10                 The FDA has reported that while it is

         11  not certainly how BSE, which I believe stands for

         12  Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy, may spread to

         13  humans. Evidence indicates that humans may acquire

         14  Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease after consuming BSE

         15  contaminated cattle products.

         16                 The FDA adopted a regulation that

         17  prohibits the use of most mammalian protein in the

         18  manufactured animal food given to ruminant animals,

         19  such as cows, sheep and goats. The regulation also

         20  requires process and control systems to ensure that

         21  feed for ruminants do not contain prohibited

         22  mammalian tissue.

         23                 This important prohibition is a

         24  preventative measure designed to protect animals

         25  from potential transmissible, degenerative,
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          2  neurological diseases, such as BSE, and to minimize

          3  any potential risk to humans.

          4                 Despite the regulations, a recent

          5  study showed that the FDA has reported that hundreds

          6  of animal feed producers have violated the

          7  regulations designed to keep BSE out of the United

          8  States. Specifically, the study found that of 347

          9  FDA licensed feed mills that handle risky feed, 20

         10  percent lacked warning labels and nine percent

         11  lacked mix-up prevention systems.

         12                 The report also found that some 1,593

         13  unlicensed feed mills that handle risky feed, of

         14  that almost half lacked warning labels, and 26

         15  percent lacked mix-up prevention systems.

         16                 In response to this growing concern,

         17  the McDonalds Corporation, which is one of the

         18  largest beef producers in the world, will begin

         19  demanding proof that the cattle used in its

         20  hamburgers are fed pursuant to FDA regulations,

         21  enacted to prevent the spread of BSE.

         22                 Beef processors will be audited by

         23  the company, that they have the required records in

         24  order to ensure compliance. According to reports in

         25  the media, the cattle and feed industries actually
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          2  welcome this requirement because it will focus

          3  ranchers and farmers on the Mad Cow Disease threat

          4  from tainted beef.

          5                 We believe it is in the City's best

          6  interest to procure items from responsible

          7  contractors that provide quality and safe goods. The

          8  risk of the spread of Mad Cow Disease is of national

          9  concern, and the City should ensure that its food

         10  service providers are in full compliance with FDA

         11  regulation.

         12                 And let me just point out that when

         13  Mad Cow Disease was first indicated, or recorded in

         14  Europe, that many of these protocols were ignored

         15  then. I believe that we ignored these protocols now

         16  at our own risk, and at the risk to our children and

         17  our senior citizens. It is important that at least

         18  the major metropolitan area in this country come

         19  forward and take a stand on these regulations and

         20  put in place our own regulations to guarantee this.

         21                 Before we hear testimony -- well,

         22  actually, first I want to turn this over to Council

         23  Member Fiala, the co-sponsor of this bill, to make a

         24  statement.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,
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          2  Chairperson Freed. I thank you for your

          3  co-authorship of this bill. I think it is a major

          4  statement. New York City leads the way in so many

          5  issues, and there is absolutely no reason why we

          6  shouldn't lead the way in this important public

          7  health issue.

          8                 I want to, in advance of hearing

          9  testimony, and asking any questions, thank Andrew

         10  Newman, the Counsel to the Committee, and Kevin

         11  Fullington, the Counsel to the minority, for shaping

         12  this bill.

         13                 If I could paint a very quick

         14  backdrop, it was last November that we first tackled

         15  this issue, and we are approaching it from many

         16  different angles. We have had a hearing with the

         17  Health Committee to assess the protocols that are in

         18  place in our health field. What has come out of that

         19  hearing and the dialogue that had taken place since

         20  November, is a change in the public health policy in

         21  this City, to the credit of the Board of Health and

         22  Commissioner Cohen, they have or they are about to

         23  undertake a vote that will classify CJD, the

         24  Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease, the human variant of Mad

         25  Cow, as well as traditional CJD, as a
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          2  reportable-mandated disease, so that we can begin to

          3  track this.

          4                 Europe has had nearly 100 fatalities.

          5  When I first heard of Mad Cow, I laughed it off the

          6  way I think so many Americans did and so many

          7  Europeans. Britain is now laughing at the rest of

          8  Europe because Britain has had to suffer the

          9  devastation of Mad Cow and has put in place very

         10  stringent protocols. It has now spread throughout

         11  Europe. It was, back in March, I believe, that the

         12  World Health Organization and the United Nation

         13  issued an edict stating, as you said, that we take

         14  this risk at our own peril, that they felt the

         15  nations around the globe were laxed in their efforts

         16  to police this disease, specifically to police the

         17  feed that is provided to the cattle and other

         18  animals. And it was suggested by the World Health

         19  Organization and the UN, that nations around the

         20  globe recognize that there is the potential here for

         21  global contamination, that it was not isolated to

         22  Great Britain.

         23                 Europe has suffered devastating

         24  consequences, both in terms of human life, as well

         25  as economic consequences. Fortunately, the United
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          2  States cannot point to one case of Mad Cow. It's

          3  speculative. Some believe that it does exist, the

          4  human variant does exist. I point to the man last

          5  November on Staten Island that passed away, and some

          6  have speculated that he had the human variant CJD.

          7                 McDonalds, as you indicated,

          8  voluntarily stepped up to the plate. A private

          9  company steps up to the plate and says, we've had

         10  enough, we recognize that this is an important

         11  public health issue, and we are issuing our own

         12  edict, and I believe they said April 1st is the

         13  deadline, or early April, and they sent out a

         14  memorandum to all the vendors that supply McDonalds

         15  with meat. And it needs to be pointed out, as you

         16  said, that McDonalds is the largest purchaser of

         17  beef products in the world. They said to their

         18  vendors, if you can't certify, add this extra

         19  certification, with respect to the feed, you will

         20  not be able to do business with the McDonalds

         21  Corporation.

         22                 Here is where we come today. We have

         23  approached it from the Health Committee end, thanks

         24  to your leadership we are approaching it from the

         25  contracts end, because there is something we can do
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          2  in a meaningful way to ensure that our food supply,

          3  at least the food supply that the City purchases,

          4  because we have moral authority here, as well as

          5  fiduciary responsibility, to protect the lives of

          6  our school children, and we obviously hope that the

          7  Board of Ed will follow suit, since it is not under

          8  the purview of our jurisdiction, but will follow

          9  suit.

         10                 Our senior citizens in our senior

         11  centers, the patients in our health facilities, and,

         12  yes, even the prisoners in our prison system, we

         13  purchase upwards of $70 million a year, as you

         14  indicated, of meat and related products, and it

         15  makes sense that the City of New York would mandate

         16  a special extra precautionary protocol in its

         17  contracting procedures to ensure that vendors are

         18  meeting compliance standards.

         19                 We do this because evidence exists to

         20  suggest that it is not. You mentioned some examples,

         21  let me mention one more.

         22                 Twelve-hundred cattle in Texas

         23  quarantined for having been fed the very feed that

         24  they are not supposed to have fed their animals. So,

         25  clearly, when you are dealing with billions of
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          2  dollars worth of meat products, you are dealing with

          3  thousands of vendors, there is always a potential

          4  for something to fall through the cracks and we want

          5  to make sure that at least as far as the City is

          6  concerned, any money that we spend is being spent on

          7  products that ensure the public health, and we think

          8  that this measure will go a long way.

          9                 So, I commend you for taking this up

         10  and for your leadership on this issue.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         12                 And let me just add, that one thing

         13  this Committee has been doing, or been trying to do,

         14  is make sure that we set socially responsible policy

         15  for the City of New York in our contracting. Here is

         16  an obvious case where we can do something fairly

         17  certain and fairly simple to certify the safety of

         18  our beef, and it should be done and it should be

         19  done immediately.

         20                 If McDonalds can do it, how can we do

         21  less for the citizens of the City of New York.

         22                 So, and let me just remind the

         23  witnesses that it is the practice of this Committee

         24  to swear in all witnesses.

         25                 The first witness will be Scott

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Cantone and Howard Altschuler, from the Department

          3  of Citywide Administrative Services.

          4                 Gentlemen, if you will raise your

          5  right hand.

          6                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: I

          9  do.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER: I do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. And then

         12  just state your name and title and please proceed.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         14  Good morning, Chairwoman Freed, Council Members

         15  Perkins and Fiala. My name is Scott Cantone, I am

         16  the First Deputy Commissioner of the Department of

         17  Citywide Administrative Services.

         18                 Joining me this morning, to my right,

         19  is Deputy Commissioner Howard Altschuler, for the

         20  Division of Municipal Supply Services. Also joining

         21  us this morning from our agency is General Counsel

         22  and Deputy Commissioner Phil Damashek, and Assistant

         23  Commissioner and ACCO Carol Green and Chief of

         24  Staff, Lisa Sachs.

         25                 Introductory No. 902 would require
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          2  contracting agencies of the City, specifically the

          3  Department of Citywide Administrative Services, to

          4  obtain from our contractors written certification

          5  that meat food products sold to the City are in full

          6  compliance with existing federal regulations,

          7  prohibiting the use of certain animal proteins in

          8  cattle feed.

          9                 In April, Dr. Neal Cohen, the

         10  Commissioner of the Department of Health, testified

         11  before the City Council on BSE, or Mad Cow Disease,

         12  in its human form, new variant CJD. While I do not

         13  wish to repeat his testimony by delving into the

         14  technical health and scientific issues, I would like

         15  to begin my testimony today by emphasizing to the

         16  Council, that in the United States there have been

         17  no reported cases of new variant CJD in humans,

         18  likewise, there have been no reported cases of BSE

         19  in cattle.

         20                 It is our understanding that this

         21  bill would attempt to add a level of regulation

         22  governing the procurement of meat food products, in

         23  order to fully comprehend the intended added

         24  protection that this bill would provide, it is

         25  important to take you through the process by which
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          2  DCAS purchases meat and inspects its products.

          3                 The Division of Municipal Supply

          4  Services of DCAS, serves as the City's central

          5  procurement agency. In this role, DMSS contracts for

          6  approximately $70 million annually on a wide variety

          7  of food items utilized by City agencies, such as the

          8  Department of Corrections, Department of Juvenile

          9  Justice, the Administration for Children's Services

         10  and the Health and Hospitals Corporation, but not

         11  for the Board of Education.

         12                 Of this amount, approximately $19

         13  million covers meat and met products, which includes

         14  fresh frozen and canned meats, frozen dinners,

         15  including kosher and halal foods, processed meat

         16  products and deli meats for resale at the Department

         17  of Correction commissaries.

         18                 All of our food procurements are made

         19  pursuant to sealed competitive bidding rules and

         20  each resulting contract for meat and meat products

         21  requires that either:

         22                 1) In the case of fresh or frozen

         23  meat: "... Products delivered under this

         24  specification shall originate from animals that have

         25  been slaughtered in plants regularly operated under
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          2  the supervision of the USDA and shall bear the

          3  appropriate legend."

          4                 Or 2) in the case of processed meat:

          5  "meat and poultry used in the preparation of the

          6  items shall be USDA inspected."

          7                 Our requirement for USDA inspected

          8  product assures us that we are obtaining the safest

          9  product.

         10                 The USDA's Animal and Plant Health

         11  Inspection Service enforces explicit import

         12  regulations covering animals and animal products

         13  imported into the US. And the USDA examines all

         14  cattle before it can be approved for human

         15  consumption.

         16                 The USDA has prohibited the

         17  importation of live ruminant animals, and most

         18  ruminant products from all of Europe. The FDA in a

         19  1997 ruling prohibited the use of most mammalian

         20  protein in the manufacture of animal feeds given to

         21  ruminant animals.

         22                 Furthermore, in 1998, the FDA

         23  required inspections of all renders, all feed mills

         24  and some ruminant feeders for compliance with the

         25  1997 rule.
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          2                 The FDA and the USDA recently took

          3  emergency action to prevent potentially

          4  cross-contaminated products from entering the United

          5  States. On December 7th, 2002, the USDA banned all

          6  imports of rendered animal proteins, regardless of

          7  species, from more than 30 countries that either are

          8  known to have BSE in their cattle, or otherwise

          9  present undue risk for introducing BSE into the

         10  United States.

         11                 The FDA has also announced an import

         12  alert, allowing its inspector to detain shipments

         13  from these countries of animal feed ingredients and

         14  certain other products of animal origin intended for

         15  animal use.

         16                 This means that all cattle presented

         17  for slaughter at USDA inspected slaughter

         18  establishments in the United States are inspected by

         19  USDA inspectors for signs of neurological

         20  impairment, and any animal exhibiting such

         21  impairment is condemned and its meat is banned for

         22  human consumption.

         23                 Our contracts state, "New York City

         24  Bureau of Quality Assurance Food Inspectors will

         25  inspect deliveries for compliance to New York City
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          2  specifications."

          3                 All food received by the City is

          4  evaluated by a Quality Assurance Food Specialist for

          5  compliance with the contract, New York City

          6  specifications, USDA requirements and trade

          7  standards. Meat products are evaluated for

          8  freshness, quality, portion size and fat content.

          9  Meat is also checked for labeling, net weight and

         10  "use by" dates.

         11                 As all meat for the City of New York

         12  requires USDA approval, every package is examined

         13  for the USDA shield. There is low incidence of meat

         14  rejection and none for failure to have USDA

         15  certification.

         16                 When meat is rejected, it is because

         17  the meat has failed to meet our size or fat

         18  standard. Or, the meat was delivered in an

         19  unsanitary truck, or in a truck where the proper

         20  level of refrigeration was not maintained.

         21                 The Quality Assurance Food Specialist

         22  has comprehensive and substantial knowledge of how

         23  food is processed, packaged and stored; and is able

         24  to evaluate the received food product against

         25  specifications.
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          2                 The Quality Assurance Food Specialist

          3  also knows to check all incoming meat for the

          4  presence of the USDA shield.

          5                 When the Quality Assurance Food

          6  Specialist certifies that the USDA certification is

          7  present on the meat received by the City, he is

          8  assured that there is a USDA "stamp of approval"

          9  throughout the entire process of bringing the meat

         10  from "farm to fork" as it were.

         11                 Feed sold to the ranch at which

         12  cattle is raised is certified by the FDA that the

         13  feed is in compliance with the 1997 rule. The

         14  rancher sells the cattle to the slaughterhouse, a

         15  facility that is USDA regulated. This means that all

         16  product coming from the slaughterhouse will have a

         17  USDA certification that indicated the USDA's

         18  satisfaction that the live cattle were fed FDA

         19  approved feed, and the cattle did not appear to be

         20  neurologically impaired.

         21                 The slaughterhouse sells its product

         22  to a processor or a packager which must be USDA

         23  certified. The processor or packager looks for the

         24  incoming product to carry USDA certification, and

         25  then each package that is created will also have

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  USDA approval, meaning that the USDA was satisfied

          3  that the meat in the package met USDA specifications

          4  and the processor's process and plant meets USDA

          5  requirements.

          6                 The packages of meat will then be

          7  sold to a jobber. The jobber will look for the USDA

          8  shield and then move the package along. In some

          9  cases, the jobber will repackage the product, in

         10  that case the jobber must be USDA certified, and a

         11  new USDA shield will be applied.

         12                 When the package of meat arrives at a

         13  City location, the quality assurance food specialist

         14  checks for the USDA shield.

         15                 As you can see from the process I

         16  have just described, the federal government has

         17  taken several actions to ensure the safety of meat

         18  products and to prevent BSE from occurring in the

         19  United States.

         20                 Increasingly stringent protective

         21  measures have been taken by the USDA and the FDA. If

         22  a feed producer or rancher gets around all of these

         23  federal laws or regulations, do we really think that

         24  they will finally comply because New York City

         25  passed a law requiring self-certification.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 In its declaration of legislative

          3  findings and intent, the Council cited a recent FDA

          4  study in which hundreds of animal feed producers

          5  have been found to have violated the regulations

          6  designated to keep BSE out of the United States.

          7                 I would like to call your attention

          8  to testimony given by Steven Sundlof, the Director

          9  of the Center for Veterinary Medicine of the FDA on

         10  April 4th, 2001, for the United States Senate

         11  Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation

         12  Subcommittee on Consumer Affairs, Foreign Commerce

         13  and Tourism.

         14                 Dr. Sundlof testified that "FDA and

         15  state regulators have conducted over 10,000

         16  inspections of renderers, feed mills, dairy farms,

         17  protein blenders, feed haulers, and distributors

         18  since January 1998. On first inspection, about

         19  three-quarters of these establishments were found to

         20  be in compliance. Most of the establishments that

         21  had problems during the first inspection were found

         22  to be in compliance upon reinspection.

         23                 The FDA is continuing its compliance

         24  efforts by conducting additional inspections and

         25  inspecting non-compliant facilities. In January
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          2  2001, FDA field offices were issued an assignment to

          3  reinspect 830 firms that were not in full compliance

          4  with the rule. Of 184 reinspections conducted by

          5  April 2nd, 2001, only one firm continued to be out

          6  of compliance."

          7                 In other words, 0.5 percent of the

          8  firms that were reinspected were found to be

          9  non-compliant either because of lack of warning

         10  labels or lack of mix-up prevention systems, quite a

         11  decrease from the figures cited by the Council where

         12  20 percent lacked warning labels and nine percent

         13  lacked mix-up prevention systems.

         14                 If we here in New York City can

         15  presume that the FDA will continue its vigilant

         16  efforts at compliance with its own regulations, what

         17  will this legislation achieve that the FDA is not

         18  already accomplishing?

         19                 This bill would provide nothing more

         20  than a mandatory self-certification without a viable

         21  means of inspection or enforcement. We prefer to

         22  rely on the enforcement and inspection capabilities

         23  provided by the federal government through the USDA

         24  and the FDA.

         25                 The only way for us to know for sure
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          2  if a vendor is in violation of these regulations or

          3  defrauding its customers is if the USDA or the FDA

          4  takes action or informs the City of a violation.

          5                 Since it appears that the Council's

          6  intentions is to ensure that the FDA is enforcing

          7  its own regulations, may we respectfully suggest

          8  that the Council pass a resolution urging the FDA to

          9  aggressively pursue 100 percent compliance and

         10  continue its efforts in surveillance, education,

         11  inspection and prevention.

         12                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         13  testify before you today on this very important

         14  matter. We will now be happy to take any questions

         15  you may have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Let me just point

         17  out that I think that what we are really asking in

         18  this bill is requiring anyone that we contract with,

         19  that they should certify and track their cattle and

         20  where the food came from, and if it complied with

         21  FDA regulations.

         22                 But, indeed, we also want to

         23  literally have them track it from source to source.

         24  And since this Committee is also, I mean pushing for

         25  a good wood bill that does the similar certification
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          2  and tracks where the wood came from, we are

          3  essentially saying we want to track where the feed

          4  was produced and we want the food producer to

          5  certify and state that they have complied with all

          6  of this.

          7                 Given some of the problems that we

          8  have seen with the FDA, but also just the fact that

          9  the reason some of the inspections and some of the

         10  problems and lack of inspections of beef that we

         11  have seen just here in the City of New York, don't

         12  you think that an extra layer of requirements can

         13  potentially do more to protect the health of

         14  citizens here?

         15                 And quite frankly, what is the down

         16  side?  If the McDonalds Corporation thinks that it's

         17  important enough to require it for their hamburgers,

         18  I don't understand how the City of New York can do

         19  less.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         21  Okay, well, you seem to have a number of questions

         22  in there, so I will try to respond to as many as I

         23  can. If you want to reask any of those questions,

         24  feel free.

         25                 We believe that the vendors that we
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          2  deal with, obviously, have to certify that their

          3  meat products that they are selling the City are

          4  USDA certified. And obviously, as we explained in

          5  our testimony, every step along the process there is

          6  a USDA certification.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But do our

          8  contracts contain language that specifically

          9  requires adherence to the federal, state and local

         10  laws, or regulations regarding meat safety?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         12  Our contracts do provide that they comply with FDA

         13  and USDA regulations.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: What exactly do

         15  they say? Do you know what the exact language is?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER:

         17  Rather than quote specifications from memory, we

         18  will be happy to send you a copy of the

         19  specification and you can read for yourself exactly

         20  what is required. But businesses that sell products

         21  in the City are governed by federal law and state

         22  law, they are inspected by the federal government,

         23  they are inspected by the state government and they

         24  have a lot to lose for failure to comply, not just

         25  any contracting we might have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But do they

          3  contain specific contract language that requires

          4  this? And what would be wrong with requiring the

          5  certifications specifically dealing with food

          6  processes?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ALTSCHULER: As I

          8  said, I will be happy to send you a copy of the

          9  specification so you can read all of the

         10  requirements, rather than quote them from memory.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         13  But clearly, Chairwoman, like we said in our

         14  testimony, our contracts do have a provision that

         15  require that the meat comply with all USDA and FDA

         16  standards and laws and regulations.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But would there be

         18  a down side to specifically stating this with the --

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: It

         20  is stated in our contracts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Specifically about

         22  the certification of the food products?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: In

         24  terms of submitting to us a certification of the

         25  process, we don't require that piece of paper that
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          2  this legislation require at this time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

          5  Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: What's the down

          7  side?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: We

          9  don't think there is a down side to this per se, but

         10  we don't think there is an added benefit. We are a

         11  little unclear about -- we don't think this would

         12  add an additional lawyer of protection that the

         13  Council seeks to provide.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I think we

         15  disagree with you.

         16                 Council Member Fiala.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you for

         18  your testimony, Commissioner. It was detailed.

         19                 I guess where we are coming from,

         20  there have been numerous reports over the last six

         21  months with respect to Mad Cow, and specifically in

         22  this City and this country. The Chairwoman has

         23  actually been out there, I saw her on a report

         24  recently, I think it was CBS, with respect to a

         25  problem that we have in the meat industry here. But
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          2  beyond that, there are problems with FDA compliance

          3  in America, whether it was 60 Minutes or CNN, they

          4  have all done these specials. A couple of weeks ago

          5  one of them did a special where they actually had a

          6  former chief meat inspector who refuted everything

          7  that the FDA said, and had all the data, and said,

          8  you know, I was the chief inspector here, and I can

          9  tell you, if we inspect five percent of the stuff

         10  it's a lot. We can't do, with our manpower, we kind

         11  of take a cursory look at it and things fall through

         12  the cracks. And they even went in with surveillance

         13  cameras into these meat warehouses and he pointed

         14  out, he said, look, look at the way this meat is

         15  being handled, look at what is going on over here.

         16                 So, this generic statement that they

         17  make, you know -- my confidence level with having

         18  the FDA seal of approval on a package is not very --

         19  is not a comfortable one, because we see things fall

         20  through the cracks all the time.

         21                 What we are trying to do is respond

         22  to the challenge I think that was put forth by the

         23  World Health Organization, and the deficiencies I

         24  believe in the federal government, yes, we point the

         25  finger. We believe that there are deficiencies in
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          2  federal regulations. It is not within the

          3  jurisdiction of the City of New York to specify

          4  those regulations, but given the power of our

          5  purchasing purse, and given the moral responsibility

          6  we have protecting the health of our children, our

          7  seniors, our prisoners, as I said our hospital

          8  patients, I think we are trying to take a precaution

          9  and, you know, this New York City meat safety bill

         10  is the first of its kind in the nation, and we hope

         11  what it will do is knock down the first Domino, and

         12  here is the theory behind it:

         13                 Meat vendors are in the business to

         14  make money, the same way a building contractor is,

         15  the same way the man selling hot dogs on the street

         16  corner is, the same way we are all, we all are out

         17  to get our paycheck, to pay our bills. There has

         18  been enough evidence in this City and every City

         19  around the nation to suggest that there is

         20  corruption and there is non-compliance. I would

         21  submit to anybody out there with an ounce of common

         22  sense, that there has got to be a percentage of meat

         23  vendors, and I won't put a percent on it because it

         24  would be arbitrary, but to suggest that meat vendors

         25  wouldn't take advantage of laxed policies, wouldn't
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          2  try to slip something through the cracks, I think is

          3  to display a level of naivete.

          4                 We are trying to create the first

          5  layer of protection at a City level by saying to

          6  those vendors, you not only need to certify this

          7  generic seal of approval, the FDA or USDA approval,

          8  that's too easy. You need to take the responsibility

          9  to certify to us that you are meeting a specific

         10  provision that we don't believe is being red

         11  flagged, we use the word red flagged, the Chairwoman

         12  and I, because we want it to be a glaring issue for

         13  these people. We want them to realize that a

         14  violation of this particular provision, and it's

         15  been violated and the proof is in the pudding

         16  because it wasn't I who said this, it was NBC and

         17  CNN that came out, 1,200 cattle in our own country

         18  have been quarantined because they were fed the very

         19  feed that has supposedly been outlawed. I don't know

         20  if outlawed is the word, as much as it is in

         21  violation of our food practices, as far as the

         22  federal government is concerned.

         23                 So, somebody fed cattle feed that was

         24  in violation of those regulations. So, what we want

         25  to do is just set kind of a trip wire here. You want

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  to do business with the City of New York, because

          3  that is what we are dealing with, a procurement

          4  policy, then you better damn well make sure that you

          5  accept your responsibility and certify that your

          6  meeting, your suppliers and you, your meeting not

          7  only this stamp, that I would contend is just a

          8  rubber stamp, because so many reports have indicated

          9  meat falls, you know, literally thousands of pounds

         10  of meat fall through the cracks every day and it's

         11  been evidenced on camera, it is not me making an

         12  assertion, and not only by reporters, but by USDA

         13  officials, and former FDA Chief inspectors, who have

         14  said this is the way it is supposed to be, this is

         15  the way it is. It is not happening the way it is

         16  supposed to be. The federal government is lax.

         17                 So, we wanted to simply set up a

         18  protocol that says you want to do business with this

         19  City, you want a piece of our business, you want a

         20  piece of the $70 million pie? Then we want this kind

         21  of red flag procurement protocol put in place, and

         22  if you violate it, what did you come up with -- a

         23  quarter of a million dollar violation. That's pretty

         24  serious. It sends a real powerful message. We don't

         25  want to rely -- I guess our message to all of you
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          2  is, we don't want to rely on the federal government,

          3  because I will only speak for myself here, and I

          4  will let the others, I don't want to put words into

          5  their mouth, but my confidence level is pretty low,

          6  and I don't want to rely on the federal government,

          7  because the federal government has been laxed in

          8  this issue from day one, and quite frankly, the meat

          9  industry has had a major impact on the federal

         10  government's procurement practices, and let's face

         11  it, money talks at the federal level, the way it

         12  does at so many other levels, and the meat industry

         13  is a big industry, but we think the health of our

         14  children and our seniors, our hospital patients,

         15  and, yes, even our prisoners, warrants us taking

         16  just this extra level of protection, because we

         17  don't believe it is specified, it is not red

         18  flagged, so-to-speak. We are specifically honing in

         19  on one provision, that is the feed. Because the feed

         20  has been fed. There have been over 700 violations

         21  issued, I believe in March, to folks in this country

         22  who violated the simple labeling requirements, so

         23  when we talk about a stamp of approval and labeling,

         24  I think the number has gone up to over 1,000 as the

         25  Chair indicated in her opening testimony.
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          2                 We don't have the inspectors at the

          3  federal level, and they simply have not taken the

          4  moral stand that they needed to. So, we are trying

          5  to take a leadership stand at the City of New York

          6  level.

          7                 So, I would direct the question

          8  specifically to that provision with respect to

          9  cattle feed, because that is where, as Dr. Cohen and

         10  all the other experts who testified -- if that falls

         11  through the crack, what we wind up having is, I

         12  think it was a nine-year-old girl, don't hold me to

         13  it, but a nine-year-old girl I think was the

         14  youngest victim over in Europe. Her mother buried

         15  her and now her mother has the same neurological

         16  symptoms. Nearly 100 Europeans have suffered a

         17  fatality. There is no treatment, there is no cure.

         18  We simply want to make sure that those who want to

         19  do business with the City of New York don't think

         20  they are going to come in here and get a free ride.

         21  And I leave you with this thought: The New York City

         22  Board of Education serves more meals per day than

         23  any other entity in the United States of America

         24  absent the US military. I want to repeat that. We

         25  serve more meals per day in our public school system
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          2  than any other institution in America, except

          3  feeding the men and women that make up our military.

          4  We simply want to make sure that we take every

          5  precaution we can. Because that is an awful lot of

          6  hamburgers served today, and more importantly those

          7  are our children, and the federal government has

          8  been lax. So, we want the New York City government

          9  to step up to the plate the way McDonalds has. We

         10  commend McDonalds and the other organizations.

         11                 You know, when the private sector

         12  steps up and voluntarily imposes something, we know

         13  it's pretty serious, because let's face it, Madam

         14  Chair, the private sector doesn't step up and add

         15  added layers of bureaucracy or mandates because they

         16  are about making money, we are not, we are about

         17  protecting lives.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: I

         19  would like to point out that obviously this bill

         20  does not apply to the Board of Education.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Right.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         23  Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We are hoping that

         25  they will adopt it, however.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

          3  But DCAS on behalf of the City does not purchase

          4  food for the Board of Education.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. We

          6  understand that.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

          8  Obviously, as we all know, this bill would not apply

          9  to the Pathmarks, the Walbaums or the local butcher

         10  shops in the neighborhoods, it just applies to the

         11  City agencies that we buy food for, such as the

         12  Health and Hospitals Corporation, and the Department

         13  of Corrections.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: I

         16  would also like to note that, I think a USDA

         17  certification, or a USDA stamp that goes on a

         18  vendor's product is probably worth more to a vendor,

         19  to a butcher than a civil penalty of $250,000, and

         20  the reason I point that out is, because the only way

         21  we, at DCAS, on behalf of the City, will be able to

         22  find out whether a vendor is defrauding the City

         23  with regard to its USDA compliance is if the USDA or

         24  the FDA tells us this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Let me just ask,
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          2  if we have the USDA certification, does that capture

          3  all of the FDA regulations?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

          5  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          7                 I just want to say one thing. You

          8  talked in your statement about the fact that no one

          9  has come down with this yet, but what we are trying

         10  to do is what we think is a sane and proactive piece

         11  of legislation, because clearly, it's after someone

         12  gets Mad Cow Disease here, it really will be like

         13  locking the barn door after the cows escaped. I

         14  mean, we want to do this ahead of time. Again,

         15  Europe didn't do this, England didn't do this, and

         16  they are now suffering the consequences. We have a

         17  perfect opportunity now to step in to put these

         18  regulations in, to put that extra layer of

         19  certification in there and protection that we feel

         20  is necessary, that McDonalds, as, you know, as the

         21  private sector consumer, buyer, if they feel it's

         22  necessary, if they lack a certain amount of

         23  confidence in FDA regulations, and if they feel that

         24  there will be problems unless they put that extra

         25  layer in there, then I feel that we have got to take

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  that extra step. I would hope that we will be the

          3  first municipality, but that we will not be the

          4  last, that this will apply to the Board of Ed, that

          5  they will adopt the same certifications, that other

          6  cities and other states will do this, and that they

          7  step up and that they have more inspections, that

          8  there are ways to certify it so we can be sure that

          9  these requirements have been met, and our feeling is

         10  that unless we do this, unless we tell someone, you

         11  may have the decertification -- you may have the

         12  USDA regulations, but we want you to certify that

         13  the food that these cattle have eaten is safe and

         14  you cannot get a disease from it. Because if we find

         15  out that you are not going to do that, if you

         16  certified improperly, if it was lax, then we are

         17  going to hit you with a quarter of a million dollar

         18  fine, that that will make them pay attention, that

         19  they will take the extra measure and go the extra

         20  step, that maybe the US inspectors will not do, but

         21  they will make sure that their meats are safe, that

         22  the food that they have fed their cattle is safe,

         23  and that is what this bill does, and I do not see

         24  how the City of New York can do less for our

         25  citizens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Commissioner, I

          3  want to thank the Administration. When we had the

          4  Health Committee hearing here we made enormous

          5  progress, and the Board of Health and the

          6  Commissioner of Health undertook real efforts to put

          7  this issue on the map. We want to take the issue now

          8  to the consumer end, to the contracting end. You are

          9  right, as I said in my opening remarks and the

         10  Chair, the bill doesn't cover the Board of Ed

         11  because it is not within our purview, but we have

         12  certainly encouraged them, we have invited them, and

         13  what we hope to do is establish a benchmark here, we

         14  hope to embarrass others.

         15                 We have been reliant upon top down,

         16  as opposed to bottom up. The federal government has

         17  been laxed. What we want to do is send a message as

         18  the largest municipality, you know as the capital of

         19  not only the world but certainly the City that gets

         20  the major coverage rightfully so, when New York City

         21  takes a step forward on issues like this, others

         22  follow. This NYC meat safety bill is a domino, we

         23  want it to fall. We certainly want the Board of Ed

         24  to pick up, and we have had discussions with them on

         25  it. But this bill does focus in, and as you said,
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          2  those areas where you have jurisdiction, we believe

          3  that to the extent that we can catch all the people

          4  we should, and this bill catches all of those who

          5  deal with, you know, DCAS' purview.

          6                 We have to strike fear into someone.

          7  If our vendors take a look at this, and a quarter of

          8  a million dollars is a lot of money, I don't think

          9  there are many laws that we have promulgated where

         10  the penalty is a quarter of a million dollars. We

         11  want them to send a message up the food chain, no

         12  pun intended, so that everyone on the way up says,

         13  you know what? We are getting a lot of pressure from

         14  the guy down on the bottom, he is telling us we

         15  better get our act together, because he is not going

         16  to carry the burden, because if the FDA, the USDA,

         17  the federal government, the feeding houses, the

         18  slaughterhouses, if they are laxed, they should have

         19  a penalty, but that is not our area.

         20                 We want the guy on the bottom to send

         21  the message all the way up, hey, I am not going to

         22  do business with you because my confidence level in

         23  you as a supplier to me is pretty low. Just the way

         24  McDonalds is sending a message to its vendors.

         25  Rather from a top down approach, we are working from
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          2  the bottom up because we think the top down approach

          3  has failed, and we think the bottom up approach,

          4  particularly because it is the City of New York,

          5  will get others interested.

          6                 So, we want to work with you to

          7  implement this legislation, and, subsequently, or I

          8  should say concurrently, get the Board of Ed

          9  onboard. They have a lot to answer to.

         10                 DCAS was, the Chair had a Committee

         11  not too long ago, a hearing not too long ago, there

         12  were 28, I believe it was 28 individuals and 17

         13  vendors indicted, federal indictments, 14

         14  indictments, rather, doing business. The Board of Ed

         15  was fleeced out of a quarter of a billion dollars in

         16  food products. We got working with you reforms in

         17  DCAS' procurement practices, the Chair is examining

         18  whether or not -- we did get the Board on record to

         19  say they were changing their procurement practices,

         20  but the Chair is looking at that right now because

         21  they may have been lax and something may have fallen

         22  through the cracks. So, we think when we take stands

         23  like this, we effectuate positive change, and that's

         24  what we want to do here. We think a collaborative

         25  bill between the Administration and the Contracts
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          2  Committee, and ultimately the Administration and the

          3  Committee of the whole of the Council, would be a

          4  bill that we can all look forward to seeing the

          5  Mayor sign because it will be the first of its kind

          6  in the City, in this country, and it will do what

          7  it's intended to do, send a clear message up the

          8  food chain and simply state you guys have been

          9  laxed. It shouldn't have been put on our shoulders,

         10  we are not going to turn a deaf ear and a blind eye

         11  to our children and our seniors. We think it is a

         12  worthy piece of legislation and we want to work with

         13  you to make it one that is pallatable for you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Council Member

         15  Perkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         17  very much, Madam Chair. Thank you for your

         18  testimony.

         19                 I haven't heard you respond to a few

         20  concerns that have been raised, one of which has to

         21  do with the steps that the McDonalds Corporation is

         22  taking to add this extra layer of certification.

         23                 You haven't shown any appreciation or

         24  acknowledging whatsoever of that; can you give us

         25  some sense of what your thinking is about that?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: It

          3  is hard to comment on exactly what McDonalds is

          4  actually doing, we are unsure of what their

          5  specifications are, what their procurement process

          6  is for procuring meat and meat products. So, it's

          7  hard to comment furthermore on what the impact of

          8  their actual requirements are, vis-a-vis their

          9  vendors and so forth.

         10                 However, McDonalds is a commercial

         11  operation, okay, with a very large consumer base,

         12  okay? So, clearly one of the benefits that McDonalds

         13  may be deriving out of this is a public relations

         14  benefit in that they are bolstering consumer

         15  confidence in their product.

         16                 Now, obviously there may be other

         17  benefits McDonalds has from the process, but we are

         18  unable to comment with regard to that, because we

         19  are unsure, again, what the procurement process is

         20  and what the specifications in their contracts are.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You do

         22  appreciate the value of the public's confidence in

         23  the product, not only in the private sector but also

         24  in the public sector, and from that perspective

         25  there is value in providing this extra level of
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          2  certification. You acknowledge that at least in the

          3  private sector, in terms of McDonalds?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: I

          5  can't comment on that. I am not sure what added

          6  layer of benefit the certification process --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You said it

          8  is good for their public relations. It is good for

          9  consumer confidence.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         11  That may be one of the benefits McDonalds derives

         12  from this, absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         14                 Do you think such a benefit would

         15  come to the consumers of our products, if such a

         16  layer was provided?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: My

         18  fear is that it may provide a false sense of

         19  security for us. Because, again, we are not sure

         20  what the added benefit of this certification process

         21  would have.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Meaning

         23  people would be confident, misled, because in fact

         24  the meat is bad?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:
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          2  No. We are not saying the meat is bad, what we are

          3  saying is --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That would be

          5  a false sense of confidence.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

          7  What we are saying is that we don't believe that

          8  this certification process would add an added layer

          9  of protection, okay, on the process that already

         10  exists.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And you come

         12  to that conclusion because of what? What scientific

         13  or other evidence do you have that won't add any

         14  greater protection?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         16  Well, there is no other scientific provision within

         17  this bill.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But how do

         19  you say won't add any additional protection?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         21  Council member, like we described in our testimony,

         22  we rely upon the USDA and the FDA --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But your

         24  testimony, and at least our evidence indicates that

         25  it's not reliable all the time.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

          3  What's not reliable?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The USDA

          5  label. The label sometimes is on there, but the

          6  product does not live up to the standard; is that

          7  what the evidence is suggesting?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: It

          9  is not of our opinion that the USDA or FDA labels

         10  are unreliable.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But you don't

         12  take the opinion of others that, you know,

         13  scientists and researchers --

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         15  Clearly, Council Member, we understand the concerns

         16  expressed by the Committee, okay? However, we feel

         17  that the process that is in existence is a process

         18  that needs to be followed, and that we need to rely

         19  upon the USDA and the FDA and the federal government

         20  to ensure that the producers of the meat and the

         21  meat products are in compliance with these laws. All

         22  the certification provides is, is that the vendors

         23  are self-certifying that they were in compliance

         24  with these laws, okay? There is no way for us as a

         25  City agency to determine whether this is true or
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          2  not, unless the FDA or the USDA tells us otherwise.

          3                 So, again, even if this bill passes

          4  and becomes law, we are, again, still relying 100

          5  percent on the USDA or the FDA. It does not provide

          6  an added layer of protection.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What it does

          8  is require that the vendor be sure that it complies,

          9  as opposed to simply taking the labels. So, it

         10  requires the vendor to take a look at what is behind

         11  the meat, or what is in the meat, what's in the

         12  product.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         14  Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And how does

         16  that hurt us if the vendor is required to do that?

         17  How does that cost us as a --

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: It

         19  doesn't cost us anything --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Does that

         21  have a budgetary impact?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         23  Council Member, let me be clear. It doesn't cost us

         24  anything and it doesn't hurt.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It doesn't
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          2  hurt.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE: It

          4  doesn't hurt to do it. Again, we don't think it

          5  helps. Okay, what I am saying is also, again, is

          6  that while you are saying, yes, there is this

          7  additional penalty, the civil penalty of $250,000,

          8  okay? But, again, if a vendor thinks they can

          9  defraud the FDA and the USDA, okay, why are they now

         10  going to become in compliance with the USDA and FDA

         11  regulations, because the City of New York is now

         12  threatening to impose a civil penalty on them, if we

         13  find them to be not in compliance with the FDA, USDA

         14  regulations? And, again, the only way we are going

         15  to find that out is if the USDA or FDA tells us so.

         16                 And, again, I believe that the USDA

         17  and the FDA stamp of approval is probably worth more

         18  to a vendor than the $250,000 civil penalty. If they

         19  think they can get away with defrauding the USDA and

         20  the FDA, what makes them think they are not going to

         21  be able to get away with defrauding the City of New

         22  York?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, I hear

         24  what you are saying. I think the certification just

         25  reminds everyone of how important this concern is. I
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          2  think you even admit that there is at least from a

          3  consumer point of view or a value in terms of

          4  confidence that the appropriate authorities, whether

          5  they be in the private sector, or whether they be us

          6  in the public sector, are concerned about this, and,

          7  therefore, feel that there is -- this extra layer

          8  gives them some sense of confidence, and I think

          9  that the penalty is something that has value in

         10  terms of encouraging someone to make sure that the

         11  product that they are offering is a quality product,

         12  irrespective of the label.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         15                 Let me just clarify a few things. As

         16  far as McDonalds and your speculation that perhaps

         17  they are doing this for publicity? The truth is --

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         19  Council I am not saying they are only doing it for

         20  publicity, I am just opining that this may be one of

         21  the benefits that they are deriving from this

         22  process.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just let me

         24  respond to that.

         25                 They are terrified of even mentioning

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  the word "Mad Cow". They were invited to come here

          3  today, I personally spoke to one of their

          4  representatives, their feeling is they are doing

          5  this because they feel they have to, because they

          6  feel this is a smart business decision, and that

          7  they are terrified of the possibility of Mad Cow

          8  spreading to the United States and destroying

          9  essentially their business, or for that matter

         10  spreading worldwide to any of the businesses.

         11                 It has had enormous impact on their

         12  sales in Europe. They are going to do whatever they

         13  can to try to avoid this spreading any further. They

         14  will take whatever precautions they personally feel

         15  are necessary, including exactly what we are talking

         16  about.

         17                 It is our feeling that the cattle

         18  producers are in the best position to determine the

         19  type of food and the safety of the food that their

         20  cattle are fed. Clearly, someone who is a federal

         21  inspector who is looking at a slaughtered carcass

         22  cannot tell from that that -- what kind of food they

         23  ate, if there is disease in there, any of that. And,

         24  again, when we talk about a false sense of security,

         25  it is our feeling that the false sense of security
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          2  is already there, and that is what was given from

          3  the testimony of former inspectors, and when they

          4  talk about the levels of meat that are not

          5  inspected, and we talk about, and we look at the

          6  small number of actual federal inspectors, and when

          7  we even look at the inspections that were done in

          8  the meat market district in this City, we realize

          9  that huge amounts of meat, of beef, is not being

         10  inspected. We really feel that these are necessary

         11  protections, that if we red flag it and we send out

         12  a message that we are concerned about this, we would

         13  hope that it is a dominos effect, and that other

         14  municipalities will pick this up so that anyone who

         15  has foodstuffs that are going to be fed to cows

         16  realize that people are going to check it out, they

         17  are going to watch what they are going to do, that

         18  if they give unsafe food to cattle producers, those

         19  cattle producers will look at them and say, wait a

         20  minute, how was this done? Will you certify that

         21  certain protocols were followed? How do we know that

         22  there were no risky high-risk procedures followed

         23  here? We want to be sure that that is not done.

         24                 This gives them the weight, the

         25  authority, the necessity that they need to turn to
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          2  the food producers and say, we demand that this be

          3  done and you prove to us that the food that I am

          4  feeding my cattle is safe. And this is how it has to

          5  be done.

          6                 We are absolutely convinced that this

          7  is what has to be done to make our children, our

          8  seniors, anyone in the City safe from any of the

          9  meat that we buy in the City, and, again, we would

         10  hope that this will blossom, and that it will be

         11  picked up, not just statewide but countrywide, and

         12  that these protocols will be followed and they are

         13  similar, if not exactly the same as to what they are

         14  now recommending in Europe.

         15                 I just have one question. When we

         16  talk about federal penalties, do you know what the

         17  federal penalties are? And do we have a clue as to

         18  how often they are actually assessed? It is my

         19  understanding it is rare, no pun intended.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANTONE:

         21  Well, clearly the ultimate penalty would be losing

         22  their ability to have the USDA stamp on their

         23  product, but we will get back to you. We will find

         24  out for you and get back to you on what the other

         25  penalties may be.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right.

          3                 Are there any more questions? Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I would just

          5  wrap up by impressing upon everyone, as I think the

          6  Chair just did, there is no pun intended here

          7  either, it's easy to do with meat, but an ounce of

          8  perfection --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Don't beef about

         10  it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Don't beef

         12  about it.

         13                 An ounce of prevention, in our view,

         14  is worth a pound of cure. And what we are trying to

         15  do is, (a) acknowledge what exists. An honest, even

         16  a cursory look, an honest, cursory look at meat

         17  practices in this country, forget the rest of the

         18  world, just this country, as evidenced in recent

         19  months alone, with the nightly reports, as evidenced

         20  by countless numbers of FDA inspectors, you know,

         21  spot inspections by these mini-cams, you know, going

         22  under cover, by a chief inspector of the FDA who is

         23  no longer there, just that cursory look suggests

         24  that there are glaring deficiencies. We are saying

         25  that while we may be the municipal level of
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          2  government and we don't necessarily have the

          3  jurisdiction over establishing meat safety

          4  standards, the protocols, that is a federal

          5  jurisdiction, the FDA, the USDA, we are saying to

          6  them, however, we do have the jurisdiction, as

          7  evidenced in viewing the good wood bill and so many

          8  other bills, we do have the jurisdiction to use the

          9  power of our purse, we use taxpayer money to buy

         10  food, we have every right, from a fiduciary

         11  standpoint, and I argue, more importantly, a moral

         12  standpoint, to demand as many layers of protection

         13  as we can on a practical level, and as you

         14  indicated, there is no cost associated with this, so

         15  there is one benefit, that we are not arguing about

         16  an added cost. Again, it can't hurt. An extra layer

         17  of clothing in the wintertime is an added benefit.

         18  It protects you from mother nature. We are saying

         19  that this extra layer is an added benefit that won't

         20  cost anything, the false sense of security, as

         21  Chairperson Freed indicated, is already there, that

         22  stamp means nothing to this Council member. I don't

         23  eat beef or much meat, I don't eat meat, with the

         24  exception of poultry which has its own problems, so

         25  I mean my confidence level in that stamp, it's a
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          2  rubber stamp, as far as I am concerned, they should

          3  be ashamed of themselves. This establishes a simple

          4  premise. It says to our suppliers, you are now going

          5  to be responsible from the bottom up, but that

          6  responsibility that we put on them, that added

          7  responsibility, forces their hand, because now they

          8  go to their folks on top of them, and as the

          9  Chairperson said, it's kind of a reversed domino

         10  effect, it works its way up the chain. It's them

         11  saying very simply, I am not going to take the brunt

         12  of this. You are supplying me, or this is what's

         13  being fed, or USDA, you are all part of this puzzle,

         14  and it isn't going to fall on my shoulders. I want

         15  to do business with the City of New York, but damn

         16  it, I am not going to be the one held accountable

         17  because you are just as culpable. I am doing

         18  everything I can and now you better do everything

         19  you can. That's all it does, it works its way up the

         20  chain.

         21                 And I close by saying this: The Chair

         22  said we want this to be the first, not the last.

         23  This is the greatest City on the face of God's

         24  earth. We have done many good things. This City,

         25  through its local legislation, has established
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          2  national priorities in many instances, other

          3  municipalities copy us everyday, we want us to lead

          4  the way in this effort. We have given it a lot of

          5  thought. And as I said, the Counsel of the

          6  Committee, Mr. Newman, the Counsel to the Minority

          7  who worked on this bill for me, Kevin Fullington, I

          8  mean a lot of work went into this and a lot of

          9  thoughtfulness. We would like to see something come

         10  of it, because the issue is there. It is not Kathryn

         11  Freed, Bill Perkins, Eva Moskowitz or Steve Fiala

         12  standing on a rock saying this exists and not offer

         13  any empirical data. It exists because it's been

         14  there in Europe, it exists because the World Health

         15  Organization has issued an edict, the United Nations

         16  has issued an edict, the FDA's former inspectors

         17  have issued verbal edicts, it exists because 1,200

         18  cattle in our own country is in quarantined, despite

         19  the federal government telling us, oh, no, nobody

         20  gets fed the feed that is not supposed to be fed. It

         21  exists because there is a sheep in Vermont and there

         22  is elk in the midwest who have BSE. So, clearly it

         23  exists. We can either be proactive or reactive.

         24                 Great Britain is having the last

         25  laugh. Europe and America laughed at Great Britain
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          2  over the last decade because of their laxed

          3  policies. We simply don't want to have people

          4  laughing at us.

          5                 There is no concrete evidence that

          6  anyone, thank God, has come down with Mad Cow CJD,

          7  the human variant, we just want to make sure it

          8  doesn't happen. Because if we can't learn from the

          9  mistakes of our European counterparts, then what is

         10  the point of being in business? That's all we are

         11  doing is we are trying to learn to take preventative

         12  measures, because an ounce of prevention is worth a

         13  pound of cure. So, Madam Chair, I thank you, again,

         14  for your taking this issue up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And, again, I want

         16  to thank you for the good work you've done. I want

         17  to thank the Minority Counsel also, Kevin

         18  Fullington. I want to thank my own Counsel, Andrew

         19  Newman. I want to mention that both Council Members

         20  Quinn and Council Member Moskowitz attended, and I

         21  will just leave you with one thought, because I

         22  would urge the City, including the Board of

         23  Education, to join us in this, this is a

         24  precedent-setting bill that we believe is very

         25  necessary to help protect the safety, health and
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          2  safety of the citizens of this City, and, again, I

          3  will just leave you with one thought, those who

          4  ignore history are condemned to repeat it.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 Are there any more witnesses? All

          7  right, thank you very much. This hearing is closed.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 11:30 a.m.)
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          3
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified
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